
  1700 S. El Camino Real, Suite 405 
San Mateo, CA  94402-3050  

first5sanmateo.org 
                                                    

 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
* PUBLIC HEARING MEETING NOTICE* 
FIRST 5 SAN MATEO COUNTY (F5SMC) 

COMMISSION MEETING 

DATE:   Monday, December 15, 2025 

TIME:   4:00 – 6:00 PM 
 

San Mateo County Office of Education 
101 Twin Dolphin Drive, 1st Floor Conference Room 

Redwood City, CA  94065 

Participate via Zoom for Public Members 
https://smcgov.zoom.us/j/91317809806 

Phone: +1 669 900 6833, Webinar ID: 913 1780 9806 
 

PLEASE NOTE: This meeting will be held in a hybrid format with both in-person and 
Zoom participation options for members of the public;  

Commission members shall appear in person 
 
This meeting of the First 5 San Mateo County Commission will be held at the address 
above in the San Mateo County Office of Education, 101 Twin Dolphin Drive, 1st Floor 
Conference Room, Redwood City, CA  94065 and by teleconference pursuant to California 
Assembly Bill 2449 and the Ralph M. Brown Act, CA Gov’t Code. Section 54950, et seq. 
Members of the First 5 San Mateo County Commission are expected to attend the 
meeting in person. For information on exceptions allowed by law please reach out to 
counsel for First 5, Jennifer Stalzer, at jstalzer@smcgov.org. For information regarding 
how to participate in the meeting, either in person or remotely, please refer to the 
instructions at the end of the agenda. 
          

AGENDA  
Call to Order and Preliminary Business 

1 Roll Call 4:00 PM 
 2 Public Comment 

3 CLOSED SESSION 
(The Commission will adjourn to closed session to consider the 
following item at this time during the meeting.  At the conclusion of 
closed session, the Commission will reconvene in open session to 
report on any actions taken for which a report is required by law.) 
Public Employee Performance Evaluation (California 
Government Code Section 54957(b)) 
Title: Executive Director, F5SMC 
 

4:05 PM 

https://smcgov.zoom.us/j/91317809806
mailto:jstalzer@smcgov.org


  1700 S. El Camino Real, Suite 405 
San Mateo, CA  94402-3050  

first5sanmateo.org 
                                                    

 

Page 2 of 4 
 

4 Report Out of Closed Session 
By Nkia Richardson, Chair, First 5 SMC Commission 
 

4:50 PM 

5 Public Comment 

4:55 PM 
 
 
 

6 Action to Set Agenda for December 15, 2025, Meeting and 
Approve Consent Agenda Items 
(This item is to set the final consent and regular agenda, and for the 
approval of the items listed on the consent agenda.  All items on the 
consent agenda are approved by one action.)  
 

7 Commission Announcements  4:58 PM 

8 Storytelling: First 5 Work/Impact:  Current issues shared by 
families of young children to Physicians  
By Commissioner Naveen Mahmood and Commissioner Sylvia 
Espinoza 

5:00 PM 

Action Items 

9 Approval of First 5 San Mateo County 2026 Meetings Calendar 
(See Attachment 9) 
 

5:15 PM 

10 Approval of 2026 Committee Members for Finance and 
Administration Committee, Early Childhood Evaluation Advisory 
Committee, and Program, Operations, and Planning Committee  
(See Attachment 10) 
 

5:18 PM 

11 Nomination and Election of Chairperson and Vice Chairperson 
to Commission for 2026 
(See Attachment 11) 
 

5:20 PM 

 
Informational Items 

12 Report of the First 5 San Mateo County Staff Team 
By Kitty Lopez, Executive Director, First 5 San Mateo County 
(See Attachment 12) 

5:25 PM 

13 Adjournment 
6:00 PM 

14 Holiday Reception 

  
Public Participation: 
 
The December 15, 2025, First 5 San Mateo County Commission meeting may be 
accessed through Zoom link at the top of this agenda. The December 15, 2025, First 5 
San Mateo County Commission meeting may also be accessed via telephone by dialing 1 
669 900 6833.  Enter the webinar ID: Webinar ID: 996 2226 6925, then press #. (Find your 



  1700 S. El Camino Real, Suite 405 
San Mateo, CA  94402-3050  

first5sanmateo.org 
                                                    

 

Page 3 of 4 
 

local number: https://smcgov.zoom.us/u/acBJLZgb6r).   Members of the public can also 
attend this meeting physically in the San Mateo County Office of Education 
101 Twin Dolphin Drive, 1st Floor Conference Room, Redwood City, CA  94065 
 
*Written public comments may be emailed to ecruz@smcgov.org, and such written 
comments should indicate the specific agenda item on which you are commenting. 
 
*Spoken public comments will be accepted during the meeting in person or remotely 
through Zoom at the option of the speaker. Public comments via Zoom will be taken first, 
followed by speakers in person.  
 
*Please see instructions for written and spoken public comments at the end of this 
agenda. 
 
ADA Requests 
Individuals who require special assistance or a disability related modification or 
accommodation to participate in this meeting, or who have a disability and wish to request 
an alternative format for the meeting, should contact Myra Cruz, Operations Coordinator, 
as early as possible but no later than 10 a.m. on Friday, December 12, 2025, at 
ecruz@smcgov.org. Notification in advance of the meeting will enable the County to make 
reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting, the materials related to it, 
and your ability to comment. 
 
 
*Instructions for Public Comment During Hybrid Meetings 
During hybrid meetings of the First 5 San Mateo County Commission, members of the 
public may address the Members of the First 5 San Mateo County Commission as follows: 
 
*Written Comments: 
Written public comments may be emailed in advance of the meeting. Please read the 
following instructions carefully: 
 

1. Your written comment should be emailed to ecruz@smcgov.org 
 

2. Your email should include the specific agenda item on which you are commenting 
or note that your comment concerns an item that is not on the agenda or is on the 
consent agenda. 
 

3. Members of the public are limited to one comment per agenda item. 
 

4. The length of the emailed comment should be commensurate with the two minutes 
customarily allowed for verbal comments, which is approximately 250-300 words. 
 

5. If your emailed comment is received by 5:00 p.m. on Friday, December 12, 2025, it 
will be provided to the Members of the First 5 San Mateo County Commission and 
made publicly available on the agenda website under the specific item to which your 
comment pertains. If emailed comments are received after 5:00p.m. on Friday, 
December 12, 2025, the First 5 San Mateo County Staff will make every effort to 
either (i) provide such emailed comments to the First 5 San Mateo County and 
make such emails publicly available on the agenda website prior to the meeting, or 

https://smcgov.zoom.us/u/acBJLZgb6r
mailto:ecruz@smcgov.org


  1700 S. El Camino Real, Suite 405 
San Mateo, CA  94402-3050  

first5sanmateo.org 
                                                    

 

Page 4 of 4 
 

(ii) read such emails during the meeting. Whether such emailed comments are 
forwarded and posted, or are read during the meeting, they will still be included in 
the administrative record. 
 
 

*Spoken Comments 
In person Participation: 
 

1. If you wish to speak to the First 5 San Mateo County Commission, please fill out a 
speaker’s slip located at the front entrance table. If you have anything that you wish 
distributed to the First 5 San Mateo County Commission and included in the official 
record, please hand it to the First 5 San Mateo County who will distribute the 
information to the First 5 San Mateo County Commission members and staff. 
 

Via Teleconference (Zoom): 
1. The December 15, 2025 First 5 San Mateo County Commission meeting may be 

accessed through Zoom online at the links and telephone numbers listed above. 
 

2. You may download the Zoom client or connect to the meeting using an internet 
browser. If using your browser, make sure you are using a current, up-to-date 
browser: Chrome 30+, Firefox 27+, Microsoft Edge 12+, Safari 7+. Certain 
functionality may be disabled in older browsers including Internet Explorer. 
 

3. You will be asked to enter an email address and name. We request that you identify 
yourself by name as this will be visible online and will be used to notify you that it is 
your turn to speak. 
 

4. When the First 5 San Mateo County Commission Chair calls for the item on which 
you wish to speak, click on “raise hand.” Speakers will be notified shortly before 
they are called to speak. 

 
*Additional Information: 
For any questions or concerns regarding Zoom, including troubleshooting, privacy, or 
security settings, please contract Zoom directly. 
 
Public records that relate to any item on the open session agenda for a regular First 5 San 
Mateo County Commission meeting are available for public inspection. Those records that 
are distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting are available for public inspection at 
the same time they are distributed to all members, or a majority of the members of the First 
5 San Mateo County Commission. 
 
 
 
 



  Attachment 3 

  Page 1 of 1 

 
 

First 5 San Mateo County Commission Meeting 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 

December 15, 2025 
 
All items on the consent agenda are approved by one roll call motion unless a request is 
made at the beginning of the meeting that an item be withdrawn or transferred to the 
regular agenda. Any item on the regular agenda may be transferred to the consent 
agenda. 
 

 

 

3.1 Approval of the October 27, 2025 Commission Meeting Minutes  

(See Attachment 3.1) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 



Attachment 3.1 
 
 

Page 1 | 8 

 

First 5 San Mateo County (F5SMC) 
COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 

OCTOBER 27, 2025 
 

San Mateo County Office of Education 

101 Twin Dolphin Drive, 1st Floor Conference Room 

Redwood City, CA  94065 

 
Call to Order & Roll Call  

1. Roll Call  

Commission Members: Carla Boragno, Colleen Chawla, Claire Cunningham,  

Hanish Rathod, Nkia Richardson, Jackie Speier 

 

Youth Commission: Rikhav Shah  

     

Absent: Naveen Mahmood, Sylvia Espinoza, Nancy Magee,  

 Adele Ryono (YC) 

              

Staff: Kitty Lopez, Michelle Blakely, Khanh Chau, Emily Roberts,  

Mai Le, Myra Cruz 

 

County Attorney:  Jennifer Stalzer 

 

Commission Chair Richardson called the meeting order at 4:04 PM; roll call was taken. 

The meeting was held in-person for all Commissioners and in a hybrid format where the 

public had the option to attend the meeting in person or virtually. 

 

2. Public Comments: None 

 

3. Action to Set Agenda for October 27, 2025, Meeting and Approve Consent Agenda 

Items: 

 

MOTION:  CUNNINGHAM / SECOND: BORAGNO 

AYES: BORAGNO, CHAWLA, CUNNINGHAM, RATHOD, RICHARDSON, SPEIER 

AYES - YC: SHAH 

NOES: NONE 

ABSTAIN: NONE 

 

Motion approved. 



Attachment 3.1 
 
 

Page 2 | 8 

 

Public Comments: None 

 

4. Commission Announcements:  

Commissioner Cunningham shared the impact of federal government shut down such as 

disrupting CalFresh benefits for nearly 35,000 recipients in San Mateo County, including 

more than 10,000 children. Many families and older adults may go to the store and discover 

their benefits weren’t loaded onto their benefit card as usual.  The County’s Human Services 

Agency is working with nonprofits, food banks, and state partners to spread the word and 

prepare for increased demand.  Commissioner Cunningham urges Commission members to 

support community organizations, as this has become a local issue requiring collective 

action to ensure residents have enough food. 

 

Public Comment: 

Eric Valladares, Executive Director of Family Connections, shared that agency staff also 

often face the same challenges as the families they support. He highlighted the need for 

support systems, trauma-informed practices, and more resources for staff, who are bearing 

a lot of emotional and practical burdens and urged ongoing discussions on improving 

support for these employees.  

 

 

5. Storytelling: First 5 Work/Impact:  Youth Commission Reflection  

Youth Commission Rikhav Shah highlighted the following about his experience interning 

with Supervisor Jackie Speier’s Office: 

• Timeline: He interned with Supervisor Jackie Speier from March–August, attending 

weekly in-person shifts during the school year and summer. 

• Responsibilities: He conducted legislative research (tariffs, Medi-Cal eligibility, human 

trafficking, childcare), assisted with office tasks, and supported projects such as tax 

options and highway planning. 

• Experiences: He attended county budget hearings, staff meetings, and community 

events including town halls and Disaster Preparedness Day. 

• Reflection: He gained valuable insight into legislative processes, county priorities, and 

public service; expressed gratitude for the opportunity and found the experience 

engaging and meaningful.    

 

Commission made comments and asked questions. 



Attachment 3.1 
 
 

Page 3 | 8 

 

 

Public Comments: None 

 

6. Presentation: First 5 San Mateo County Early Childhood Mental Health Network 

Update 

Dr. Chandra Ghosh Ippen, Associate Director/ Dissemination Director, UCSF Child Trauma 

Research Program and Emily Roberts, Strategic Initiatives Project Manager, First 5 San 

Mateo County presented on this agenda item. 

Emily Roberts highlighted the following while introducing the speaker: 

• Ripple Effect training that the guest speaker would be discussing. 

• Child-parent psychotherapy cohorts (three groups of clinicians in ongoing trauma-

informed training). 

• Reflective Supervision training (recently launched, still open for enrollment). 

• Centering Family Voice project (co-design with parents/providers, “Big Feelings” 

resources launched online). 

• Early Childhood Mental Health Network (supporting providers and families, building 

resources). 

• Ripple Effect training about to be discussed by Chandra Ghosh Ippen 

• Emphasized excitement about progress, community partnerships, and the importance of 

supporting families and providers 

 

Chandra Ghosh Ippen highlighted the following: 

 

• Shared a video of herself doing a WISC assessment on a child with early childhood 

trauma (neglect, cigarette burns, multiple foster homes). 

• Highlighted how trauma narratives can surface in children’s language and behavior and 

how people often misinterpret them 

• Traumatic experiences are encoded in the brain and body across multiple domains 

(emotions, neurobiology, relationships, attention). 

• Danger memories are adaptive for survival but can resurface as reminders long after the 

event. 

• A single traumatic event consists of multiple moments. 

• Ripple Effect Curriculum uses metaphors (drop of water = traumatic moment; ripples = 

reminders) to explain trauma theory. 

• Ripple Effect Curriculum was developed from the National Children’s Stress Network 

(Dr. Robert Klein). 

• According to the Ripple Effect, trauma affects all domains of functioning and can be 

managed, not “cured,” similar to asthma or diabetes. 



Attachment 3.1 
 
 

Page 4 | 8 

 

• According to Alicia Lieberman, Freud, Winnicott, there are universal fears that become 

embedded when overlapping with lived traumatic experiences. These include the fear of 

not being seen, separation, losing love, body damage, and being bad. 

• It is important for schools to have trauma-informed care to be able to recognize trauma 

reminders and support children effectively. 

• Workforce training should integrate trauma theory alongside other psychological 

frameworks. 

• Trauma-informed approaches are essential to avoid misdiagnosis and better support 

children and families. 

 

 

Commission made comments and asked questions. 

 

Public Comments: None  

 

The PowerPoint Presentation can be found on the F5SMC’s website, October 27, 2025 

Commission Meeting Presentations. 

 

7. Approval of the First 5 San Mateo County FY 2024 – 2025 Budget Close Out 

Kitty Lopez, Executive Director, highlighted the following: 

 

• The Administration Subcommittee reviewed the budget closeout on October 20 and 

recommended approval 

• Summarized the budget closeout, explaining how revenue was slightly lower than 

projected in the revised budget, there was higher interest revenue, lower tobacco tax 

revenue, and lower execution of certain grant categories. 

• Appropriations/expenditures were lower than anticipated due to timing issues in grant 

execution, delays in the Baby Bonus Program launch, and savings in administrative 

areas. 

• Ending Fund Balance/reserves were higher than projected in the revised budget, driven 

by higher interest revenue, lower tobacco tax revenue, and reduced grant execution. 

• The deficit was smaller than anticipated due to unexecuted grants. 

• Strategic Plan Implementation (2023–2025): 78% executed. 

• Carryover fund: 59% executed, with unspent funds returned to reserves. 

• Other grant appropriations: 62% executed. 

• Program appropriations: 70% executed. 

• Administrative appropriations: 74% executed 

• Ending fund balance is approximately 10% higher than revised projections. 

• The Commission was asked to approve the 2024–2025 budget closeout as presented in 

Attachment 7. 

https://first5sanmateo.org/past-commission-meetings/
https://first5sanmateo.org/past-commission-meetings/


Attachment 3.1 
 
 

Page 5 | 8 

 

 

MOTION:  CHAWLA / SECOND: RATHOD 

AYES: BORAGNO, CHAWLA, CUNNINGHAM, RATHOD, RICHARDSON, SPEIER 

AYES - YC: SHAH 

NOES: NONE 

ABSTAIN: NONE 

 

 

Public Comments: None 

 

The PowerPoint Presentation can be found on the F5SMC’s website, October 27, 2025 

Commission Meeting Presentations. 

 

 

8. Presentation of First 5 San Mateo County Audit Report FY 2024 – 2025  

Kitty Lopez acknowledged Khanh Chau, Finance Director, and Mey Winata, Fiscal Support 

Staff for their dedication and hard work to successfully overcoming the challenges of this 

year’s annual audit and introduced Ashley Green, partner at Brown Armstrong Corporation 

who would present the audit findings and provide further details. 

 

Ashley Green highlighted the following: 

• Introduced herself and outlined the audit process 

• The auditors opinion was clean and unmodified 

• No non-compliance noted, no weaknesses or deficiencies. 

• New accounting standard for compensated absences disclosed, no significant impact. 

• One immaterial uncorrected misstatement (subscription-based IT lease ending June 2025). 

• No corrected misstatements, disagreements, or difficulties encountered. 

• Management commended for achieving a clean audit. 

• No issues requiring further action. 

 

MOTION:  CUNNINGHAM  / SECOND: BORAGNO 

AYES: BORAGNO, CHAWLA, CUNNINGHAM, RATHOD, RICHARDSON, SPEIER 

AYES - YC: SHAH 

NOES: NONE 

ABSTAIN: NONE 

 

 

Public Comments: None 

 

https://first5sanmateo.org/past-commission-meetings/
https://first5sanmateo.org/past-commission-meetings/


Attachment 3.1 
 
 

Page 6 | 8 

 

 

The PowerPoint Presentation can be found on the F5SMC’s website, October 27, 2025 

Commission Meeting Presentations. 

 

9. Presentation and Approval of First 5 San Mateo County’s FY 2024 – 2025 Program 

Report and Submission to First 5 California  

Jenifer Clark, F5SMC’s Research and Evaluation Specialist, highlighted the following: 

• Local investments for FY 2024-2025 focused on Family Resilience (Family Functioning), 

Child Development (Early Learning), and System of Care. 

• Increasing proportion of funding directed to systems-level interventions to maximize 

reach as revenues decline. 

• Community investment exceeded prior year levels despite reduced tobacco tax receipts. 

• Approximately 30,000 service instances, representing ~14,000 unduplicated clients. 

• Distribution: one-third children, one-third parents, one-third providers. 

• Family functioning services are high-intensity (e.g., home visiting), while child 

development services often reach providers such as preschool teachers. 

• Improved data collection reduced “unknown age” reporting among children served. 

• Race, ethnicity, and language demographics align closely with county population and 

Medi-Cal eligible children, indicating effective targeting of high-need groups. 

• A survey of ECMH clinicians revealed that 80% of these clinicians had minimal/mild 

secondary traumatic stress, while 15% reported moderate to severe stress, underscoring 

need for trauma-informed training. 

• A survey of the Home Visiting Workforce revealed an average hourly wage reported 

around $35 hourly, with the majority receiving vacation benefits; ~60% have 

medical/dental coverage. There was a disparity between county-employed home visitors 

(strong benefits) and nonprofit-employed staff (fewer resources). 

• An examination of the relationships between family demographic information and family 

well-being revealed that higher caregiver education was linked to preschool attendance 

and stronger early academic support, larger households correlated with higher cumulative 

risk and fewer early academic supports, while having more adults in the household 

associated with lower risk and improved preschool attendance. 

 

 

https://first5sanmateo.org/past-commission-meetings/
https://first5sanmateo.org/past-commission-meetings/


Attachment 3.1 
 
 

Page 7 | 8 

 

MOTION:  BORAGNO / SECOND: RATHOD 

AYES: BORAGNO, CHAWLA, CUNNINGHAM, RATHOD, RICHARDSON, SPEIER 

AYES - YC: SHAH 

NOES: NONE 

ABSTAIN: NONE 

The PowerPoint Presentation can be found on the F5SMC’s website, October 27, 2025 

Commission Meeting Presentations. 

 

10. Report of the First 5 San Mateo County Staff Team 

Kitty Lopez, shared that the F5SMC Team Report is in the packet and highlighted the 

following:  

• Discussed a PBS article on why many mothers with young children are leaving the 

workforce. 

• Encouraged Commissioners and the public to review the piece, noting the difficult choices 

families face due to childcare costs 

• The Stronger Starts Initiative, a program under First 5 California, powered by Cell Ed 

provides mobile, research-based parenting courses, coaching, and microlearning for 

caregivers of children ages 0–5. 

 

Jennifer Staltzer announced that she is stepping down from her position with the county and 

moving on to a new position as of December 1st. There will be a new county attorney 

assigned to First 5 for the next commission meeting. 

 

Public Comments: None 

 

11. Committee Updates  

The written report is included in the packet. 

 

o Program, Operations and Planning Committee: Commissioner Richardson noted 

that the Committee met on October 6 and received a presentation on the Community 

of Practice, during which they discussed the goals, target population, and planned 

activities. 

 

o Finance and Administration Committee Meeting: Commissioner Boragno shared 

that the Committee met and reviewed the two recommended approvals for the 

Commission: the FY 2024 Budget Close Out and the Annual Audit. She emphasized 

that the successful audit reflects significant work by staff and Khanh Chau and her 

fiscal team. 

https://first5sanmateo.org/past-commission-meetings/
https://first5sanmateo.org/past-commission-meetings/


Attachment 3.1 
 
 

Page 8 | 8 

 

 

Commission made comments. 

 

Public Comments: None 

 

12. Meeting adjourned at 5:45 pm 



  Attachment 9 

   Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 
 
 
Date:  December 15, 2025  
 

To:       First 5 San Mateo County Commissioners 
 

From:    Kitty Lopez, Executive Director 
 

Re:   Approval of First 5 San Mateo County 2026 Meetings Calendar 

 

ACTION REQUESTED 
Approval of First 5 San Mateo County 2026 Meetings Calendar 
 
BACKGROUND 
As stated in the First 5 San Mateo County Commission Bylaws adopted on May 2025:  

• Article VIII, Section 1, Regular and Special Meetings, the Commission shall meet 
regularly at times and places to be determined by the Commission.  There shall be at 
least four meetings each calendar year, generally on the fourth (4th) Monday of the 
month.  Special meetings may be called at a time and place designated by the Chair.  
The Commission staff shall give notices of regular and special meetings in accordance 
with the Brown Act. 

• Article IX, Section 5, Committee Meetings, regular meetings of standing committees 
shall be held at times and places determined by the Commission.  Special meetings 
may be held at any time and places as designated by the Chair of the Commission or 
the Chair of the Committee.  A majority of the members of the committee shall 
constitute a quorum for that committee. 

 
 
The following 2025 Commission and Committee schedule was developed based on meeting 
dates and times that have been established by the Commission members: 
 
Commission Meetings:  4th Monday of each month / 4:00 pm - 6:00 pm, except 

December which is on a 2nd Monday 
 
Program, Operations & Planning:  1st Monday of each month, except when it’s on a 

holiday / 4:00 pm - 5:00 pm 
 
Finance & Administration: 2nd Monday of each month, except when it’s on a 

holiday / 9:00 am – 10:00 am 
 
Early Childhood Evaluation:  3rd Monday (bi-monthly), except when it’s on a holiday / 

3:30 pm - 4:30 pm 
 
Meeting dates that deviate from the schedule above are due to holiday conflicts (See 
Attachment 9.1).  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of First 5 San Mateo County 2026 Meetings Calendar 



DRAFT 

 

 

2026 Commission and Committee Calendar  

  

Commission 
Meeting 

Program, 
Operations & 

Planning 

Finance & 
Administration 

Early Childhood 
Evaluation 
Advisory 

 

SMC Office of Education 
101 Twin Dolphin Drive 
1st Floor Conf. Room 

Redwood City, CA 94065 

SMC Office of Education 
101 Twin Dolphin Drive 
2nd Floor Conf. Room 

Redwood City, CA 94065 

First 5 San Mateo 
1700 S. El Camino Real, 
1st Floor – Miller Ream, 
San Mateo, CA 94402 

First 5 San Mateo County 
1700 S. El Camino Real, 1st 

Floor – Miller Ream, 
San Mateo, CA 94402 

 

  

4th Monday  
4:00pm - 6:00pm 

(except December or when 
it’s on a Holiday) 

1st Monday 
4:00pm – 5:00pm 
(except when it’s on a 

Holiday) 

2nd Monday 
9:00am – 10:00am 
(except when it’s on a 

Holiday) 

3rd Monday 
3:30pm – 4:30pm 
(except when it’s on a 

Holiday)  

 

January 1-26 
 

No Meeting 
 

No Meeting 
1-12 

(1-19, MLK) 
 

 

February 2-23 
 

2-2 
 

2-9 No Meeting 

 

 

March 
 

3-23 
 

No Meeting No Meeting 3-16 

 

 
April 4-27 4-6 4-13 No Meeting 

 

 
May 

5-18 
(5-25, Memorial Day) 

No Meeting 5-11 5-18 
 

 
June 6-22 6-1 6-8 No Meeting 

 

 
July 7-27 No Meeting No Meeting 7-20 

 

 
August No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting 

 

 
September 9-28 

9-14 

(9-7 Labor Day) No Meeting No Meeting 
 

 

October 10-26 10-5 
10-19 

(10-12, Indigenous Day) 
10-19 

 

 
November No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting 

 

 
December 12-14  12-7 No Meeting No Meeting 

 

  



  Attachment 10 

   Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 
Date:  December 15, 2025  
 

To:       First 5 San Mateo County Commissioners 
 

From:    Kitty Lopez, Executive Director 
 

Re:   Approval of First 5 San Mateo County 2026 Committee Members  

 

ACTION REQUESTED 
Approval of First 5 San Mateo County 2026 Committee Members. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Committees provide technical assistance and professional expertise by reviewing 
materials and making recommendations for consideration by the full Commission.  Members 
are appointed by a majority vote of the Commission and consist of a minimum of two 
Commissioners and a maximum of four, which is less than a quorum of the members of the 
Commission (In compliance with The Brown Act: California’s Open Meeting Law).  Each 
Committee elects the Committee Chair and appoints public members as appropriate. 
 
The following are appointment recommendations for the 2026 Committees:  

 

First 5 San Mateo County Subcommittees  

Committee Committee Description Members for 2026 

Finance and Administration  Reviews the Commission’s 
financial operations including but 
not limited to the: annual budget, 
annual audit, long term financial 
planning, and investment 
strategies.   

Claire Cunningham 
Sylvia Espinoza  
Carla Boragno 
Hanish Rathod 

Program, Operations and 
Planning  
 
(also referred to as POP) 

Reviews program specific content 
areas and helps facilitate the 
successful implementation of the 
Commission’s Strategic Plan. 

Nancy Magee 
Nkia Richardson 
Staff Member representing Jackie 
Speier 
 
*Harvey Kaplan 
*Liz Scully 

Early Childhood Evaluation 
Advisory  

Reviews the implementation of 
First 5 San Mateo County's 
outcome-based evaluation 
framework and helps the 
Commission use evaluation results 
to inform strategic decision making. 

Colleen Chawla 
Naveen Mahmood 

 

*Carol Elliott 
*Heather Cleary 

 
*Public Members are included in the table and approved annually. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of First 5 San Mateo County 2026 Committee Members  



Attachment 11 

                                                                                       Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 
Date:  December 15, 2025 
 

To:       First 5 San Mateo County Commissioners 
 

From:    Nkia Richardson, Commission Chair 
 

Re:       Nomination and Election of Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson for 2026 

 

ACTION REQUESTED 
Nominate and Elect Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson for 2026 
 
BACKGROUND 
Each year the Commission takes action to appoint the Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson for 
First 5 San Mateo County.  The following is taken from the approved Bylaws of the First 5 San 
Mateo County Commission, Article VI (Officers):  
 

1. Officers: 
a. The Chair shall preside over all business and meetings of the Commission, appoint 

chairs of standing and ad hoc committees, and exercise such other powers and 
perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Commission. 

b. The Vice Chair shall be a Commissioner, and in the Chair’s absence or inability to 
act, shall preside at the meetings of the Commission.  If both the Chair and Vice-
Chair will be absent or unable to act at a meeting at which a quorum of the 
Commission will be present, the Chair may in advance of said meeting appoint a 
Commissioner to preside at said meeting over all business of the Commission, 
appoint chairs of standing and ad hoc committees, and exercise such powers and 
perform such other duties of the Chair as may be prescribed by the Commission.  

 
2. Terms and Removal:   

Officers of the Commission shall be chosen annually through an election to be held at 
the last scheduled meeting of each calendar year, unless an earlier election is necessary 
because of a vacancy or vacancies on the Commission.  Officers shall serve from the 
date of their election until a successor is selected, or until an earlier removal or 
resignation.  

 
 
Currently Nkia Richardson serves as Commission Chair and Nancy Magee serves as 
Commission Vice Chair since January 2024. It has been the First 5 San Mateo Commission’s 
practice that Chair and Vice-Chair serve a two- year term.  
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Nominate and Elect Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson for 2026 



       

Page 1 of 3 
 

     Attachment 12  

 
FIRST 5 SAN MATEO COUNTY (F5SMC) 

FIRST 5 STAFF TEAM REPORT 
DECEMBER 2025 

 

STRATEGIC INVESTMENT FOCUS AREAS – UPDATE  

QUALITY CARE AND EDUCATION 
 
Child Care Blueprint Nearing Completion 

On Monday, December 8, 2025, led by Consultant Andrea Jones and the Children's 

Collective and its partners—including SVCF, the County of San Mateo, F5SMC, 4Cs 

and  Build Up SMC, and others—presented the near-final Child Care Blueprint.   The 

gathering focused on honoring the collaborative work completed and inviting broader 

participation as the initiative moves from planning to action, with the goal of improving 

outcomes for children, families, and childcare providers throughout the county. This plan 

represents a year of collaborative work across the county.  The convening celebrated 

progress, looked ahead to 2026 implementation and provided an opportunity to reflect 

on collective efforts, connect with stakeholders, and help shape the implementation 

phase. Over 120 attendees attended including F5 Staff and F5 Commissioner Carla 

Boragno. More details about the Blueprint will be released in the new year. a formal 

launch is scheduled for April. 

 
 
HEALTHY CHILDREN 
 
Ripple Effect Taster 
On December 11, First 5 SMC will host a Ripple Effect Taster training designed for local 
systems leaders featuring Dr. Chandra Ghosh Ippen from UCSF Child Trauma 
Research Program. Over 40 leaders from County systems and nonprofits plan to attend 
the event to learn more about how they can support more trauma informed systems and 
practices. 
 
Ripple Effect Two-Day Workshop: An Integrative Framework for Enhancing 
Trauma-Informed Practice Across Systems 
Please join First 5 San Mateo County for this essential training which offers an 
integrative framework for understanding how trauma affects children, families, and our 
systems. The Ripple Effect translates complex trauma concepts using metaphor, visual 
models, common language, and rich case example. By creating a shared vocabulary 
and awareness around trauma, this workshop is a powerful tool for improving cross-
system communication and ensuring coordinated, compassionate responses to families. 
At a time of great need, we know collective action is required to lessen the impacts of 
trauma exposure. Please register here or See Attachment 12.1. 

 

 

https://www.eventbrite.com/e/ripple-effect-2-day-workshop-tickets-1975622582326?aff=oddtdtcreator


       

Page 2 of 3 
 

     Attachment 12  

SPECIAL PROJECT 

Baby Bonus Pilot Program 

Core partners convened in person on November 19th to discuss data collection and 

analyses for the Baby Bonus Pilot Program. Because this pilot is part of a rigorous 

research study conducted by a team at Stanford University, great care must be taken to 

protect the integrity of the study and the privacy of participants. UpTogether, our 

payment distribution partner, shared their impact measurement framework and 

examples of learnings from other pilots they have supported. Partners expressed 

appreciation for the clarity and dialogue about how we are measuring and 

communicating impact. 

 

POLICY & ADVOCACY UPDATES 

BUILD 2025: The Heart of the Matter, 

F5 Staff Team members Emily Roberts and Michelle Blakley along with many Early 

Education Experts and Champions attended the National BUILD Conference in Los 

Angeles, Dec 2-4. The Conference convened (federal state and local county 

jurisdictions) leaders dedicated to supporting young children and families. Attendees 

included state government officials from education, health, and human services sectors, 

as well as advocates, researchers, service providers, technical assistance specialists, 

coaches, and home visiting experts. Participants worked across various domains—early 

education and care, community development, family economic support, health services 

(prenatal through early childhood mental health), child welfare, housing, and 

prevention—with some bridging multiple systems. The conference provided a platform 

for addressing critical challenges, (systems alignment, funding streams) and fostering 

substantive dialogue, and strengthening collaborative networks. 

 

FIRST 5 CALIFORNIA & FIRST 5 ASSOCIATION UPDATES 

Kitty Lopez, First 5 SMC Executive Director, attended her last First 5 State Association 
Board of Directors meeting on Friday, December 5, as Past President.  She has served 
on the State Association Board for nearly 10 years. The new slate of officers were 
elected by the Association’s 58 county membership to begin their term starting in 
January 2026. 
 

COMMUNITY AND STATEWIDE EVENTS & UPDATES  
 
Volunteering for Food Distribution Support 

Early in November, the County Executive issued a call for county employees to 

volunteer at Core Service Agencies in order to meet increased demand for food 

assistance. On November 17th, two members of First 5 staff volunteered at Daly City 

Partnership, boxing, packing, and distributing food for the community. Timely and 

accessible food assistance is critical for thousands of families across San Mateo County 



       

Page 3 of 3 
 

     Attachment 12  

facing food insecurity. To access Core Service Agency resources or learn more about 

volunteering, visit: www.smcgov.org/hsa/core-service-agencies-emergency-safety-net-

assistance. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS  
 
Community Engagement Plan Update 
In November, the First 5 Staff Team and its communications firm, VIVA Social Impact 
Partners, hosted information tables at libraries in Pacifica, Daly City, and Half Moon Bay 
to gather input from families with young children about their needs and preferred ways 
of receiving information from First 5. A virtual parent focus group, held in both English 
and Spanish, took place on December 10. The survey findings will be presented at the 
January Commission Meeting.  These findings will be used in developing the F5SMC 
Communications Plan. 
 
Quarterly e-Newsletter 
On December 1, 2025, F5SMC released its quarterly newsletter, featuring Big 
Feelings—a resource page on our website designed to support young children and 
families in SMC experiencing emotional or behavioral challenges. The newsletter also 
highlights emergency safety-net assistance for families, recent tabling efforts to gather 
family feedback, and warm holiday wishes. 
 
Social Media and Analytics Reports (See Attachment 12.2) 
 
 
 

https://www.smcgov.org/hsa/core-service-agencies-emergency-safety-net-assistance
https://www.smcgov.org/hsa/core-service-agencies-emergency-safety-net-assistance
https://myemail.constantcontact.com/Big-Feelings--Parent-Survey--and-Holiday-Support-Services.html?soid=1102534218456&aid=lNVS5N_Aw-A
https://first5sanmateo.org/big-feelings/
https://first5sanmateo.org/big-feelings/


Wed 1/14 & Thurs 1/15
9:30am-4pm

Please join First 5 San Mateo County for this essential training which offers an
integrative framework for understanding how trauma affects children, families,
and our systems. The Ripple Effect translates complex trauma concepts using
metaphor, visual models, common language, and rich case examples. By
creating a shared vocabulary and awareness around trauma, this workshop is
a powerful tool for improving cross-system communication and ensuring
coordinated, compassionate responses to families. At a time of great need, we
know collective action is required to lessen the impacts of trauma exposure.
We look forward to learning with you.

JOIN US FOR....

An Integrative Framework for
Enhancing Trauma-Informed
Practice Across Systems 

Presenter: Chandra Ghosh Ippen, Ph.D is a co-developer of Child-
Parent Psychotherapy (CPP) and a member of the Board of
Directors of Zero to Three. Dr. Ghosh Ippen has over 30 years of
experience conducting clinical work, research, and training
focused on early childhood trauma. 

REGISTER HERE: https://bit.ly/3XDDGj6

doors open for registration and breakfast at 9am, program begins promptly at 9:30

Attachment 12.1



1 of 5

REPORT FOR NOV 1, 2025 - NOV 30, 2025

FIRST 5 SAN MATEO COUNTY

In  Novem ber, First 5 San Mateo County saw a strong increase in  visibility across channels, driven by h igh engagem ent with Big Feelings content and the
launch of three Meta ads beginning m id-m onth. Website sessions increased 84% com pared to last m onth. The Big Feelings page brought in  the m ost
traffic with 1,026 views, followed by the 5 Protective Factors blog (Spanish) with 133 views, and the Baby Bonus page with 122 views.

Meta paid advertising was the m ain driver of th is growth. The three Big Feelings ads have a total budget of $600 and have spent $331.06  so far, generating
65,416  im pressions and 712 clicks, and contributing to a m ore than 3,000% jum p in  Facebook im pressions. These ads will run through m id-Decem ber.
Instagram  im pressions rose 273% m onth over m onth , driven by ad traffic and steady engagem ent with resource-focused content and com m unity events.

Keep pr ior it izing: 
•  Big Feelings content that connects fam ilies to m ental and em otional health resources 
•  Com m unity-centered storytelling across Facebook and Instagram , h ighlighting local resources and events

2,596

Previou s period Previou s year

84% 364%

1.29

Previou s period Previou s year

-5% -82%

00:00:19
3,359

Previou s period Previou s year

7 4% -14%

/big-feelings/ 1,026
/ 517
/es/Los-5-factores-de-protección-por-los-que-im portan-los-prim eros-cinco-años/ 133
/baby-bonus/ 122
/list-of-support-services/ 110
/baby-bonus-parent-guide/ 84
/resources/ 7 7
/who-we-are/ 59
/for-parents-fam ilies/ 57
/how-support-can-help/ 49
/kit-for-new-parents-2/ 47
/staff/ 45
/coping-with-ecm h/ 31
/com m ission/ 31
/adverse-childhood-experiences/ 30
/contact/ 26
/our-work/ 24

Page  Addre ss Vie ws

NO VEMBER 2025 ANALY TICS O VERVIEW

WEBSITE ANALYTICS

SESSIO NS VIEWS PER SESSIO N AVG ENGAGEMENT TIME PER SESS VIEWS

TO P VIEWS BY  PAGE

Attachment 12.2



2 of 5

Event  Name Event  Count  

page_view 3,359
session_start 2,57 5
first_visit 2,147
user_engagem ent 1,7 49
scroll 7 31
click 167
video_progress 124
file_download 65
video_start 41
video_com plete 24

Session Def ault  Channe l Grouping Sess ions 

Direct 1,156
O rganic Search 556
Paid Social 512
Referral 140
Paid O ther 115
O rganic Social 87
Unassigned 29

3,077

Previou s period Previou s year

0% 28%

9

Previou s period Previou s year

350% -87 %

40,983

Previou s period Previou s year

3,065% 108%

0.81%

Previou s period Previou s year

-7 9% -39%

Every child and fam ily deserves access to m ental health and behavioral support,

and First 5 SMC’s Big Feelings can help you find it. From  parent groups and free

coaching to screenings, therapy, and school-based supports, Big Feelings connects

f ili t th t fit th i d i l di id b ildi t

0 2 10

Taking care of yourself is one of the best ways to support your child. Big Feelings,

created by First 5 San Mateo County, offers local m ental health resources and

tools to help parents and caregivers care for their own well-being. When parents

f l t d th h l f il b fit L

0 0 7

Every child experiences big em otions, and Big Feelings is here to help. Big Feelings

is an in itiative created by parents with First 5 San Mateo County that provides

tools, videos, and resources to help fam ilies understand children’s em otional

d d fi d t L htt //fi t5 t /bi f li /

0 3 2

It’s tim e to m ake your voice heard. Tom orrow (Novem ber 4) is Election Day, and

Vote Centers and Ballot Drop Boxes are open across San Mateo County for the

statewide special election. You can vote in person, register, or drop off your

l t d b ll t t V t C t O f th B ll t D B

0 0 2

Every fam ily in  San Mateo County deserves to feel safe and supported. If you or

som eone you know is concerned about im m igration activity, there are trusted

com m unity resources here to help, including the Rapid Response Hotline at (203)

666 4472 (203 NO MIGRA) L b t l l i l t t bl

0 1 2

Join us on Friday, Novem ber 21, from  10:30 to 11:30 a.m . at the Serram onte Main

Library for a Play & Learn event with Help Me Grow San Mateo County. Fam ilies

with children ages 0–5 are invited to enjoy play-based activities that support

iti i l d ti l d l t Pl i h hild l b t

0 2 2

Post  Wit h  Image Post  Comme nt s Post  Share s Tot al Re act ions

EVENT CO UNT TO P TRAFFIC SO URCES

FACEBOOK INSIGHTS

FANS CO UNT FAN ADDS PAGE IMPRESSIO NS PAGE ENGAGEMENT RATE

TO P PO STS BY  ENGAGEMENT TY PE (WITH IMAGE)

Attachment 12.2

https://www.facebook.com/910437224451495/posts/1304579761703904
https://www.facebook.com/910437224451495/posts/1311247857703761
https://www.facebook.com/910437224451495/posts/1298573095637904
https://www.facebook.com/910437224451495/posts/1298601378968409
https://www.facebook.com/910437224451495/posts/1301053082056572
https://www.facebook.com/910437224451495/posts/1310435014451712


3 of 5

Post  

Taking care of yourself is one of the best ways to suppor… 105
Every child and fam ily deserves access to m ental health a… 99
Every child experiences big em otions, and Big Feelings is … 64
Join us on Friday, Novem ber 21, from  10:30 to 11:30 a.m . … 26
Join Supervisors Lisa Gauthier and Jackie Speier for a Ch… 4
Every fam ily in  San Mateo County deserves to feel safe a… 4
Fam ilies can find affordable, m ultilingual therapy and su… 3
It’s tim e to m ake your voice heard. Tom orrow (Novem be… 3
Fam ilies on the South Coast of San Mateo County can fi… 2
Join us on Monday, Novem ber 24 , from  10:00–11:00 a.m . … 2

Post  Post  Impressions 

Every child experiences big em otions, and Big … 32,014
Every child and fam ily deserves access to m en… 7 ,7 7 9
Taking care of yourself is one of the best ways… 5,455
Join us on Friday, Novem ber 21, from  10:30 to … 57 7
Join Supervisors Lisa Gauthier and Jackie Spei… 92
This season, we’re grateful for the parents, car… 88
Join us for Toddler Story Tim e with Stay & Pla… 88
Join us on Monday, Novem ber 24 , from  10:00… 7 6
We’re kicking off our new #F5SMCResourceFri… 69
It’s tim e to m ake your voice heard. Tom orrow … 67

1,707

Previou s period Previou s year

1% 8%

112

Previou s period Previou s year

42% 15%

16,198

Previou s period Previou s year

27 3% 594%

1.24%

Previou s period Previou s year

-54% -7 3%

Join us on Friday, Novem ber 21, from  10:30 to 11:30 a.m . at the Serram onte Main Library for a Play &

Learn event with @ helpm egrowsm c.    Fam ilies with children ages 0–5 are invited to enjoy play-

based activities that support cognitive, social, and em otional developm ent.    Play is how children

l b t t l d t th L t th li k i bi

14 0 20

Join Supervisors @ suplisagauthier and @ jackiespeier for a Child Care Town Hall in  Half Moon Bay to

share your experiences, challenges, and ideas about child care in  San Mateo County.    The event will

be held on Wednesday, Novem ber 19, 2025, from  6:00–7:30 PM at the Half Moon Bay Library. RSVP

i th li k i bi If ’t tt d till ti i t b l ti h t i

13 0 17

Rising child care costs continue to im pact working fam ilies across San Mateo County. A recent

@ KQ ED podcast highlighted Supervisor @ jackiespeier’s leadership and com m itm ent to expanding

access to affordable, h igh-quality child care. Learn how these efforts are supporting fam ilies and

t th i l l i t Li t t th li k i bi #S M t C t

9 1 12

Join us for Toddler Story Tim e with Stay & Play on Monday, Novem ber 10 from  10:15–11:15 a.m . at the

Pacifica Sharp Park Library.    Get ready to learn and play with your little one! Enjoy songs and stories

for toddlers ages 18 m onths to 3 years, followed by Stay & Play, a tim e for open-ended exploration

d l i ith th hild d i Fi t 5 S M t C t ill b th t h

9 0 13

We’re kicking off #F5SMCTriviaWednesdays, a new series sharing quick facts and insights about early

childhood developm ent.    Trivia tim e: What’s one sign that a young child m ight need extra

em otional support?    Answer: Frequent tantrum s, trouble calm ing down, or difficulty form ing close

b d ll i l th t hild d h l i ith bi f li G tti t l

7 2 10

This season, we’re grateful for the parents, caregivers, educators, and com m unity partners who

m ake San Mateo County a place where young children can thrive. Thank you for supporting the

healthy developm ent and well-being of our youngest residents every day.    #Thankful #Gratitude

#S M t C t #E l Childh d #C it

7 0 7

Post  Wit h  Image Like s Comme nt s Engage me nt

TO P PO STS BY  ENGAGEMENT TO P PO STS BY  IMPRESSIO NS

INSTAGRAM INSIGHTS

FO LLO WERS LIKES IMPRESSIO NS ENGAGEMENT RATE

ENGAGEMENT BY  PO ST (WITH IMAGE)

Attachment 12.2

https://www.instagram.com/p/DRKdtJGEWVG/
https://www.instagram.com/p/DRLKU5ejPc4/
https://www.instagram.com/p/DQsB4lok2gC/
https://www.instagram.com/p/DQwtxuSE0Vj/
https://www.instagram.com/p/DQ9zj5SE803/
https://www.instagram.com/p/DRcfQnFEpB1/


4 of 5

$331.06

Previou s period Previou s year

100% 168%

23,170

Previou s period Previou s year

100% 260%

65,417

Previou s period Previou s year

100% 267 %

712

Previou s period Previou s year

100% 143%

Campaign Name Clicks (All) 

Post: " Every child experiences big em otions, and Big..." 194
Instagram  post: Every child and fam ily deserves... 134
Post: " Every child and fam ily deserves access to m ent… 124
Post: " Taking care of yourself is one of the best ways..." 98
Instagram  post: Every child experiences big... 89
Instagram  post: Taking care of yourself is one of... 7 3

Post: " Every child
and fam ily deserves
access to m ental..."
(id :

10 84

Post: " Taking care of
yourself is one of
the best ways..."  (id :
120237494471760763

7 7 4

Ad ID wit h  image Post  Re act ions Link Clicks

305
548

Previou s period Previou s year

-49% -41%

8

Previou s period Previou s year

-7 5% -7 4%

2.7%

Previou s period Previou s year

-44% -57 %

AMO UNT SPENT

FACEBOOK AND INSTAGRAM ADS

REACH IMPRESSIO NS CLICKS (ALL)

TO P CAMPAIGN BY  CLICKS (ALL) ENGAGEMENT BY  AD

LINKEDIN INSIGHTS

FO LLO WERS IMPRESSIO NS LIKES ENGAGEMENT RATE

Attachment 12.2

https://www.instagram.com/p/DRBo1D5gDks/
https://www.instagram.com/p/DRQCPk0gBg5/


5 of 5

At First 5 San Mateo County, we believe every fam ily deserves safety, stability, and access to
trusted com m unity resources. O ur latest Fam ily Blog highlights these vital resources, helping
ensure that every child and fam ily in  our com m unity feels safe and supported. Learn m ore:

4.4% 6 1

Rising child care costs continue to im pact working fam ilies across San Mateo County. A recent
@ [KQ ED](urn:li:organization:12359) podcast highlighted Supervisor @ [Jackie Speier]
(urn:li:person:dj3oNCLqFt)’s leadership in  advancing solutions for affordable, h igh-quality
child care. Listen here:

3.7 % 1 3

It’s tim e to m ake your voice heard. Tom orrow \(Novem ber 4\) is Election Day, and Vote
Centers and Ballot Drop Boxes are open across San Mateo County for the statewide special
election. You can vote in person, register, or drop off your com pleted ballot at any Vote
Center. O r, use one of the secure Ballot Drop Boxes — m any are open 24 hours a day. Every

2.8% 0 1

Big em otions are a norm al part of growing up, and parents don’t have to navigate them
alone. Big Feelings, an in itiative created by parents with First 5 San Mateo County, offers tools,
videos, and resources to help fam ilies understand children’s em otional needs and find local
support. Learn m ore:

2.0% 1 0

Post  wit h  image Engage me nt  Rat e Like s Clicks

TO P PO STS BY  ENGAGEMENT RATE

Attachment 12.2

https://dashthis.com/?utm_source=Dashboard&utm_campaign=Powered%20by%20Dashthis&utm_medium=Logo
https://www.linkedin.com/feed/update/urn:li:share:7392278557130973184
https://www.linkedin.com/feed/update/urn:li:share:7391932328136249344
https://www.linkedin.com/feed/update/urn:li:share:7391287062601195520
https://www.linkedin.com/feed/update/urn:li:share:7391274521585999872



